
 
 

NEVADA TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
GOVERNING BOARD 

MEETING PACKET 
Thursday July 23, 2020 

Virtual Meeting 
 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
           PAGE# 
Agenda          1 
Draft Minutes – 12/18/2019      3-5 
NTRPA Base Data Summaries      6 
NTRPA Ordinance 1980-1       7-10 
NTRPA Plan Review Procedures Policy     11-12 
Ed’s Tahoe Nugget Determination of Certified  
Base Data Eligibility – Staff Report     13-32 
 



  

STATE OF NEVADA 

Nevada Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
 

901 S. Stewart St. Suite 5003 
Carson City, Nevada  89701-5246 

Phone  (775) 684-2720  Fax  (775) 684-2721 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING   

NEVADA TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY GOVERNING BOARD 
 

Thursday July 23, 2020 10:30 AM 
 

   ****Virtual Meeting**** 
 

This meeting will be held virtually pursuant to NRS 241.023 and State of Nevada 
Declaration of Emergency Directive 006. In-person attendance is not available during 

this time. 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Nevada Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing Board 
will hold a public meeting on Thursday, July 23, 2020.  The meeting will be held virtually.  
The meeting will begin at 10:30 a.m.  
 
The Nevada Tahoe Regional Planning Agency uses LifeSize, a third-party app, for its virtual 
meetings and does not control its technical specifications or requirements. Your ability to 
participate in the public comment portions of a meeting may be impacted by factors 
including but not limited to the type of device you use, the strength of your internet or 
cellular signal, and the company that provides your internet or cellular service. The State 
Land Use Planning Agency is not responsible if you are not able to participate in a meeting 
through LifeSize due to these or any other factors. For questions or additional 
information, you may contact Scott Carey, State Lands Planner at 775-684-2723 or at 
scarey@lands.nv.gov.  
 
The public is invited and encouraged to participate by phone at 877-422-8614, when 
prompted, enter the meeting code 3567823. Public comment may also be submitted via 
email prior to the meeting. Please submit public comments to scarey@lands.nv us by 5 
PM on July 22, 2020. 

AGENDA 
1. Call to Order. 
 a. Roll Call. 
 b. Approval of Agenda – For Possible Action. 
 c. Approval of Minutes of the December 18, 2019 Meeting – For Possible Action. 
2. Public Comments – An opportunity for general comments from the public, may 

be limited to 3 minutes per person. (Note: The Board may not discuss any 
subject or issue that is not on this agenda during this time.) 

3. Report of the Executive Officer on Activities of the Agency: January 2020 – 
June 2020  

1



4.   Determination of Certified Base Data Eligibility for the Ed’s Tahoe Nugget in 
Stateline – APN 1318-23-401-049, 177 US Highway 50, Stateline, Nevada. For 
Possible Action. 

5. Board Member Comments. 
7. Public Comments – An opportunity for general comments from the public, may 

be limited to 3 minutes per person. (Note: The Board may not discuss any 
subject or issue that is not on this agenda during this time.) 

8. Adjourn. 
 
Notice:  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order at the discretion of the Chair, the public 
body may combine two or more items for consideration; and the public body may remove an item 
or defer discussion of an item on the agenda at any time. 
 
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify Scott Carey in writing at the Division of State Lands, 901 S. Stewart 
St., Suite 5003, Carson City, Nevada 89701 or by calling (775) 684-2723, no later than July 16, 2020.  
 
Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
Nevada Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Website at www.lands.nv.gov/land-use-planning/nevada-
tahoe-regional-planning-agency  
Nevada Public Notice Website at www.notice.nv.gov.  

2



 
 

PAGE 1         NTRPA Minutes 
December 18, 2019 

  
 

  

STATE OF NEVADA 

Nevada Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
 

901 S. Stewart St. Suite 5003 
Carson City, Nevada  89701-5246 

Phone  (775) 684-2720 
Fax  (775) 684-2721 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
DATE/TIME:  Wednesday, December 18, 2019 – 8:30 am 
PLACE:   Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, 128 Market Street, Stateline, NV 89449 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: – Marsha Berkbigler – Chair; Shelly Aldean; Mark Bruce; Timothy Cashman, 
Jim Lawrence, Wesley Rice, and Mark Wlaschin (Alternate). 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Barbara Cegavske – Vice Chair  

OTHERS PRESENT: Charles Donohue – NTRPA Executive Officer; Ellery Stahler – State Lands, 
Scott Carey – State Lands, and Steve Teshara – Tahoe Chamber.  

1. CALL TO ORDER – Chair Berkbigler called the meeting to order at 8:30 am. 
a. Roll Call – Scott Carey took roll and a quorum was established with all members 

present.  
b. Approval of Agenda – Member Bruce moved to approve the agenda as submitted. 

The motion was seconded by Member Lawrence. The motion was passed 
unanimously.  *ACTION 

c. Approval of Minutes of the December 18, 2018 Meeting – Member Aldean moved 
to approve the minutes as submitted. The motion was seconded by Member 
Wlaschin. The motion was passed. Member Rice abstained from the vote as he was 
not present at the December 18, 2018 meeting. *ACTION 

d. Approval of Revised Minutes of the November 14, 2018 Meeting – Scott Carey 
provided the Board with an overview the changes to the previously approved 
meeting minutes. Member Aldean moved to approve the minutes with some minor 
changes. Member Aldean proposed that in item 5 of the revised minutes that the 
phrase “term” be replaced with the phrase “position” when describing the Chair and 
Vice Chair. Member Wlaschin proposed another addition to the minutes to reflect 
that he was present at this meeting. The motion including the changes proposed by 
Member Aldean and Member Wlaschin was seconded by Member Cashman. The 
motion was passed. Member Rice abstained from the vote as he was not present at 
the November 14, 2018 meeting. *ACTION 

 

3



 
 

PAGE 2         NTRPA Minutes 
December 18, 2019 

  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Chair Berkbigler called for public comment. There was no public 
comment.  

 
3. REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICER ON ACTIVITIES OF THE AGENCY: JANUARY 2019 – 

NOVEMBER 2019 – Executive Officer Donohue provided the Governing Board with an 
update on the activities of the agency. Mr. Donohue stated that the agency has not 
received any requests for base data from any gaming properties over the past year. He 
further stated that the agency has not heard any redevelopment requests from any of 
the existing gaming properties.  
 
Mr. Donohue provided an update on the Cal-Neva project and stated that a new 
investment partner has joined the project. He stated that the new investment partner is 
now engaged with the design of the interior for the project and that this will delay the 
start of the project. He stated that the timeline for the start of the project in unknown 
at this time. He further stated that the agency is hopeful that there will be activity with 
the Cal-Neva project over the next year. Chair Berkbigler stated that the new 
investment partner will be a good partner for the project and that she read in the 
newspaper recently that the owners are working on an amended interior plan.  
 
Member Lawrence asked for an update on the Tahoe Biltmore. Mr. Donohue stated that 
owners have recently constructed townhomes and the units are currently for sale. He 
further stated the agency has not heard anything regarding the relocation of the gaming 
space that was previously approved by the Governing Board. Chair Berkbigler stated 
Washoe County changed roadways earlier this year to help facilitate the project and 
that the owner is still working on the townhome aspect of the project.   
 
Member Lawrence asked for an update on the Highway 50 Main Street project. Member 
Bruce stated that the Main Street Management Plan Stakeholder Working Group may 
be involved in the future as existing gaming structures look to change their frontages as 
the project’s design moves forward. Mr. Donohue stated that the agency would like to 
meet with the gaming properties in the corridor and discuss with them any future 
redevelopment plans as part of the Main Street project. He stated that the agency 
would have to approve any changes to the gaming floor area as a part of the project. 
Member Aldean asked if the last gaming property to be reviewed by NTRPA in Stateline 
was Bill’s Lake Tahoe. Mr. Donohue stated that was correct and that the change 
approved for Bill’s Lake Tahoe in the past was associated with work at the north tower 
of Harrah’s Lake Tahoe.  
 
Member Cashman stated that he wished there was way to encourage the Tahoe 
Biltmore project to continue to move forward. Member Aldean stated that it might be 
useful for the agency to reach out to the owners to get a status update and ask if there 
was any way it can assist with the project. Mr. Donohue stated that agency staff will 
reach out to the General Manager of the Tahoe Biltmore. 
 

4



 
 

PAGE 3         NTRPA Minutes 
December 18, 2019 

  
 

4. SELECTION OF THE NEVADA MEMBER-AT-LARGE – Member Aldean moved to nominate 
Mr. Cashman for the one-year term as Nevada Member-at-Large for 2020. The motion 
was seconded by Member Lawrence. The motion was passed unanimously. Member 
Cashman expressed his gratitude for the opportunity to continue to serve Lake Tahoe 
and the State of Nevada. *ACTION 
 

5. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – Member Rice stated that there are two members of the 
Douglas County Commission who are trying to remove the county from Lake Tahoe 
meetings. Member Rice stated that these commissioners would like to see the county 
pull out of Redevelopment Area 2 and the Lake Tahoe Visitors Authority.  
 
Chair Berkbigler stated that Washoe County has lost its latest appeal of the Incline 
Village property tax case. Chair Berkbigler further stated that it’s unlikely that the 
county will continue its fight and appeal the latest decision for the case to the Nevada 
Supreme Court. 
 
Member Lawrence stated that the next Legislative Committee for the Review and 
Oversight of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency and the Marlette Lake Water System is 
scheduled for January 21, 2021. Member Lawrence stated that Senator Julia Ratti is the 
chair of the committee this interim and that focus of the next meeting will be on 
transportation issues. Member Cashman asked if that meeting will be available online 
either through the TRPA or Nevada Legislature website. Mr. Donohue stated that he will 
follow up with the committee’s staff and let Member Cashman know if the meeting will 
be available online.  

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Steve Teshara with the Tahoe Chamber stated that in 1997 there 

was a proposal to create a new Lake County in the Nevada Legislature. Steve stated that 
one of the results of the 1997 Lake County proposal was that AB 616 was adopted by 
the Legislature which created the Tahoe Visitors Authority. Steve further stated that the 
Tahoe Chamber legislation was changed earlier this year to allow for the construction 
and financing of a new entertainment venue in Stateline.  

 
7. ADJOURN – Chair Berkbigler entertained a motion to adjourn. Member Aldean made a 

motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Member Lawrence. The 
motion was passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 9:03 AM.  *ACTION 

 
Note: These minutes should be considered draft minutes pending their approval at a future 
meeting of the Nevada Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing Board. Corrections and 
additions could be made prior to approval. 

 
 
 
 
  

5



PUBLIC AREA BASE AREA
NON-BASE 

AREA GAMING PRIVATE AREA
CUBIC 

VOLUME
SITE 

COVERAGE
PROPERTY (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.)

SOUTH SHORE
BILLS/BARNEYS* 18,498 14,019 4,479 10,492 0 221,103 7,460
CAESARS 425,667 245,857 179,910 95,566 553,873 13,088,431 310,329
HARRAHS 603,498 344,126 259,372 89,151 1,839,998 26,406,192 437,319
HARVEYS

Mountain Tower 290,346 133,834 156,512 101,967 96,115 5,209,727 94,507
Lake Tower 301,265 184,360 116,905 29,650 331,982 8,708,006 54,501
Parking I 82,583 56,928 25,655 0 536,935 5,186,816 113,764
Parking II 28,130 3,630 24,500 0 224,007 2,288,096 -
Parking III WILL BE COMPUTED WHEN CONSTRUCTED

HORIZON 334,362 153,064 181,298 78,845 1,171,442 19,199,464 347,185
LAKESIDE INN 66,303 37,933 26,370 31,262 0 1,071,447 24,199
EDS TAHOE NUGGET 16,122 9,461 6,661 8,773 0 200,462 11,560

NORTH SHORE
CAL NEVA 89,430 46,135 42,970 25,827 86,159 2,171,161 58,894
CRYSTAL BAY CLUB 51,616 19,516 32,100 16,184 185,238 2,120,654 79,007
HYATT 125,842 59,041 67,481 23,684 196,808 3,954,953 90,579
KELLEYS NUGGET

Prior to Fire 14,934 14,934 0 3,790 0 172,550 5,075
As Rebuilt -13,854 -8,794 -5,060 -3,683 0 -170,164 -4,895

MARINER 21,714 13,315 8,399 12,200 9,732 359,370 23,662
TAHOE BILTMORE 74,375 46,588 27,787 29,744 21,032 1,513,758 42,797

* Now part of Harrahs

NOTES: 

                            

In 2000, the NTRPA approved changes to the base data to the Hyatt as part of a renovation project.
In 2018, the NTRPA recertified the total cubic volume of the Cal Neva.

NEVADA TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY

Some of the figures include "approved but unbuilt" area.

Eds Tahoe Nugget has been converted into an office-retail building without gaming.  
The Mariner is not in operation and the structure has been demolished.

In 1993 the NTRPA acknowledged that 10,879.5 sq ft of private use area in the Crystal Bay Club had historically been and may continue to be in public 
use, but may not be used in calculating the base and the allowable gaming area. 

BASE   DATA   SUMMARIES

Febraury 2020

6



7



8



9



10



11



12


	Eds Tahoe Nugget Staff Report.pdf
	Tahoe Nugget Revised-Existing.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Existing


	Tahoe Nugget Revised-1ST Phase.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1ST Phase


	Tahoe Nugget Revised-Completion.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Completion






